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U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING COMMISSION  

Three Lafayette Centre  
1155 21st Street, NW, Washington, DC 20581 

www.cftc.gov  
  

  

  

FOIA Office    

  

January 5, 2021 

  

  

William Harrington   
51 5th Ave., Apt. 16A   
New York, NY 10003   
  

 RE:   21-00039-FOIA   

  

  

Dear Mr. Harrington:  

  

This is in response to your request dated December 17, 2020, under the Freedom of 

Information Act seeking access to [all information pertaining to “swap transactions involving flip 

clauses” that the Commission either used or uses in establishing that it “believes” that the 

“standardized market risk capital charges” in Commodity Futures Trading Commission “Capital 

Requirements of Swap Dealers and Major Swap Participants” (September 15, 2020) 85 FR 57465 

are “effective and appropriately calibrated”. “The standardized market risk capital charges being 

adopted are generally based on existing Commission and SEC standardized market risk charges for 

positions in foreign currencies, commodities, U.S. treasuries, equities and other instruments, which, 

in the Commission’s long experience, have generally proven to be effective and appropriately 

calibrated to address potential market risk in the positions. The Commission believes at this time 

that this approach, in conjunction with other charges discussed herein, appropriately accounts for 

the wide variety of possible uncleared swap transactions that FCMs, FCM-SDs, and covered SDs 

may engage in, including bespoke swap transactions involving flip clauses or other unique 

features.”].   
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with a flip clause is capricious. The "Commission's long experience" with swap contracts with a 
flip clause does not even cover the 2008 crisis when the contracts started and fueled the financial 
crisis. In fact, the Commission did not begin evaluating swap contracts with a flip clause until a 
former Moody's legal colleague and I challenged the Commission to do so in 2015. Only a capital 
charge of 100% can address the market risk of a swap asset that loses 100% of its value on the day 
that a swap dealer enters bankruptcy or is declared insolvent. 

External Meetings: Conference Call with Mr. William Harrington and Mr. Rick Michalek CFTC 

https://www.cftc.gov/node/157371 

 

External Meetings: Conference 

Call with Mr. William Harrington 

and Mr. R... 

The Commission rationale for not imposing a 100% capital charge on an uncleared swap with a 
flip clause is an abuse of discretion. I have provided the Commission with a wealth of information 
on the correct method to capitalize a flip clause swap contract. I imposed the method on swap 
dealers such as Merrill Lynch Derivative Products, Nomura Derivative Products, and Lehman 
Brothers Financial Products from 2000 to 2010. The Commission belief that its "approach, in 
conjunction with other charges discussed herein, appropriately accounts for the wide variety of 
possible uncleared swap transactions that FCMs, FCM-SDs, and covered SDS may engage in, 
including bespoke swap transactions involving flip clauses.  is as unfounded as President 
Trump's core belief that the coronavirus will "just disappear." Trump says coronavirus crisis will 
probably ‘get worse before it gets better' 

https://www.nbcnews.com/politics/donald-trump/trump-says-coronavirus-crisis-will-probably-get-
worse-it-gets-n1234544  

  
Trump says coronavirus crisis will probably ‘get worse before it gets better’ 
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The Commission must provide a more convincing rationale when, as I fully expect, the 
Commission postpones or denies my Section 13.1 petition to ban the flip clause. At the very least. 
the Commission might be inventive and devise a new rationale out of whole cloth, i.e. a new 
rationale that is arbitrary, capricious, and an abuse of discretion. Calling out the same ole', same 
ole' Commission lies is getting old. 

The Country cannot expect the Commission to do anything but undermine the financial system. 
However, I can help the Country understand the full extent to which the financial sector has co-
opted the Commission by flushing out Commission rationales that are arbitrary, capricious, and 
an abuse of discretion. 

Finally, I suggest to the US journalist Jesse Eisinger, whom this email copies, that the Commission 
would farm an excellent case study "THE CHICKENSHIT CLUB \'2.0." 

Bill Harrington, Harrington Independent Flip Clause Assessments 

On Friday, June PG, 2020, PM EDT, Kirkpatrick, Chris wrote: 

Dear Mr. Harrington, 

Please find attached the formal acknowledgment of the S 1 3.1 petition referenced in the 
subject line. No further submission, or other action on your part, is required to perfect the filing 
of this petition. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher Kirkpatrick                

Secretary of the Commission 
Executive Secretariat Branch / Office of the 

Executive Director 
Commodity Futures Trading Commission 

 






